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vag Litwanccol that refused to permit the of’icials el the
governazent to take the cenaus in 1321,
‘Having Jotted down all cur repliea, he add?oased 1131
Y& beg to etate that 1t was the wiehlﬁr our ;hceitcfs, ag 1% ig
uﬁ{ wish, ‘thdt 11 tha produckte on that arcs nort% of the nino-
bile post in thie valley, and for & diptznee, in' thie vallay, and
+Tor a diptance inm that direstiod of 115 milas by 60 oiles east
and west, repzln ours, ) | '
"When wa effect a sattloment with the'gGVErgmn;k.we will
dipose of the said products on & royalty basis, but until that
tlae no white azan phell enter there and you are.igqﬁeated to
roturn at once. ) :
Eorne Then tock the stand and exyleinad hiy missicn.
“up consultatian followad, arter which tha hig chiefl mgain
rogs and declared: God zade land for everybody,grndian an well

] T
as white man, end whila we believe.you are good white mea, our
"Descending freu thelr platferm the chiofs all. chook hands

with us, and bade us good-bye, ..

1527: B.C, SPEGIAL VOTE

- —

!
The fund wag et up fellowing veconrendaticns froz a Joint

pellamentary committee that heard tha Land Claiga"_ﬁr the

allied indlan tridbes of B.C, The tommlttse ruled tﬁht the allfaed
tribes had not establighed any clai;s ta the 1an& b;ued on aborig-
inal or any other title. An ennual rund af one hurdrad thoueand
dollars to be paid to E,C, Indianc in 1ieu el treaty paywent was
eatablished. Thn Kitwancool Band hus to thié dny refuaad to take
B. Cq Special Iunas 50 that it will not in any way prejudice their

stand on the land isspua,

. TEE e

3 SEPTEMBER, 1927: THE PROVINCE, REPORT: IMNDIANS SENT 16 JAIL
FOR OBSTRUCTING SURVEY k

"Five Xitwaneesl Indians wore convicted at Smithera by Magls-

——————

. 1 :
trate Hosking of agcaulting public officerc and obatructing Dom-
}
inlon Government surveyora, i th the exception ?r Richard Dousa,
who wag let off on suepended.zentsnce, jail termz of from on to

three months were imposed on Bert Williems, Feter ¥illiena,

Guud
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samuel Douse and Walber Derriek. - -

"1t wag Proved'that the accused had entErad the canp of & par;y
¢f gurveyors, made away with come of thelr instruments and warned
them to procesd no further with their work. L.¥. Potmare prosecuted
and Hiltuﬁ Gonznleﬁ def&ndéd._ '

“The atory of the cass, 4B roported by the Royel Canodlan
Mounted Police, i that the sﬁrvay party entered the valioy, undey
{inetructions of the Departmen}t of Indien Affeirs, y? gurvey tﬁu
regorves of the vallay, The-Indians, unde} certpin, leaders, hLad
always objected ta whitaes eatering the valley. A constabls of tha
R.C.M.P. accompanisd the purvey party, bal vae nat?in ﬁniférm. A
gergeant followed, 3lso in mufti.

WThe lndians dem&hed ﬁeetin;s, srd conferences with thae gur-

_veyor, bt he refused, as ho vie dealing with the Department of
Indian Affairs directly. He did not start surveying. Upon his sec-
ond rcfusal to sttend a.meetingl'fiVE Indlans camaitu his camp
end attezpted obsiruction., One piékad up & transit and ﬁalged
avoy with 3t. It wis &ﬁken froa him, end he tried 1t again, but
1t was reoved, The Indians daciared they would i9ad the white
pen in =3 wagon,‘w;th tha outfit, and take tham cut.of the valley.
One Indian pickod up an axe, broke 1t on a rock, and threw it in
the creck. 1In the oplnion of the H.G.M.F. sergu;n?, they wara

trying to uggravate the white hen to acsaults He .thought thoy
ware acting under advice. - l ‘
aThe Indiens left, siill thraatening. ZYhse sérgeant went batk
to his poet, tock two caonstables, and 1in unlfors peturned to the
camp in tho valley. Wgils procesding in, they ma} Peter willlens,
vecretary of tha Kitwancool couneil, carring a slxeshooter in his
veit. It was loaded. The sergeant asked hinm for L%, he Terused
ty give it up, and the Indian was arrested, and Qisnrmﬁd. glbert
Williams, precident of the Ecouncll, wes algo arrdgtqs, as wgre thres
others, The five nman who wero taken were alleged to pa the ring-
Yeaderz in all the troutle., The chiel, David Sm;th; was naob
active, nor vas the Chiaftainecs, uother of the two Douass.
mhccording to the opinion of the authorities, the younger
Indians of the tribe ars not sctlvsa inoppoesition to the gurvey

- -

sf the vallay."
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' AlYert Williame, Fater Williums, Samual Douse and Walter
Derrick sll served jall ¢entencaes at Cakalln Prigon &t Naw
Wegtainater, in j527. Thie 1s alse the date of Original
Survay Plume No, 567, %68, and 594 of Kitwsncool Indian Roserve,
otharvice kngwn ag "'Oakalla. Prigon Remerve". W Ihip Reservel
which wng ogtabllrhed under durope, hao nover baen recognizaod

and Atg boundarias have never been staked,

kg

WJuJo

T

Paged of 39 IRR-2018-86934



. (7} Moore accs as Interpreter.

MEETING WITH THE KITWANCOOL BAND OR TRIEE OF INDTANS AT XITWANGAR I.&%
SUNDAY, APRIL 18th, 1915,

TRE CHAIRMAN addresses the assembled Indians as to the powers and 52352"3“““ )
the Commisaicon, and,
(?} Alexander addresses the Commigsion as follows:
I am the Chief of the Kitwancool Indians, and we have appointed Albert
Williams to say all that we wish to have said.
THE CHAIRMAN:
¢. Do yoa want Albert Williams to speak for you?
THE CHIEF:

A, Yes.

ALBERT WILLIAMS addresses the Commission as follows: I feal happy berauvsa
I see two Governments today - the Dominion Government and the Provincial
Gavernmenti I am‘standing right in front of you gentlemen and I am naot
going to tell apything crooked - T am guing to tell averything straight.
We are right in front before God = God is on.:qp of us all the time and he
£2n als0o see you CWo GOVernments. 0Our Grandfathers, who have gane already
have asked fdr something, and I am going to ask you for it. OF course
those people who have died, we represent those Deanle here knday who hkaye
gone. I am not geing to say mwch today - only ths one thing I am going
ta talk about in front of you gentlemen today.” That is the reason T talk
that way because ve were born right herg In this country, and that i why
I am telling you about it today, so wa wigh kindly to ask the Government
to help us and give us what we want. Ws know our Xing, Gegorge V, he is a
great power In the world, and he knows that wa belong to this country. It
i not long ayo that the Gowernor-General came to Prince Ruperé€, and when
we gaw him we put our words right belfore him, and he put his hand on tap
of uvs meéning all the Skeena River, and he promised everything to the
Skaeena pecple and he told us chat he would get it from the two Governments:
that ig the reason I am standing here to ask for our own land. It I3 3even
years that we have been crying out about this land from ‘the Government, so
we kipdly asking you two Covernments ¢o help us about this.

ALBERT WILLIAMS IS HEREUPON CALLED AND SWORN.
MR. COMMISSIONER MACDOWALL:
o. Your name is Albert Willisms?

16~
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Yes.
And you are tke spokesman for the Kitwancocl Tribe?

Yes.

It appears tﬁat you Fand has no Reserves, but the Victeria Government
has reserved some land for you about which we are going to ask you
about, so that we can recommend lands to be given ta you that will be
sufficient for you Tribe ~ Now cam you tell me about how many peaple
there are in the Kitwancool Band?

Fhat is the reason you want to know that,

Because wo want to give you encugh lénd, and we want to know how many
people we will have to provide land for?

There J1s not very many people ué there, but about the land that we
have there and about which I was speaking about today - we don't vent
the whole Province, but I want to show yet the land that we used to
have before. .
Can you tell me about how many people there are in Your Band?

If you will ask me or ask Hr- ﬁaring_hou many people there are uvp
there it will be all right, but the land that belongs té ug for a long
time, we are asking you for that. .

Well then you will be satisfied with the number of people that Mr.
Loring gives pe, will ch?

Yes. '

Do you recmgnire tais place called Kitwancool an the map, where tha
villzge is (producing map)?

Yez. - .

Is that good land for farming?

Yes, it is all good land,

Is there much timber on itF

Some places thare is sowe timber and some burned timber,

Is there much cultivation on that reserve?

There 15 not myck done there - only a very zsmall garden-

IX you had the means ta cultivate that land would you like to cultivaee
it and grow crops thare?

We are trying to be civilized people and we are trying to d¢ our best
and get a liktle more ecivilized all the time.

Would you like to have sameone to teach you haw to farm and cultivate

that reserve?

-17-
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Fa den't like ta see your Government giving us too many tools for !

o’ our Band. )
@¢. Would you like to have @& farming instructor under Er. Lering to
teach you How to cultivate your land? ;
&. Wa dan}t 1like to hear about "Reservation” - We want, to gelt our own
land back.
ag. You heard the addzess yasterday in which it was stated that the Govern-
ment were takiig zZreps tc have that marteyr sattled before the courts?
A. We was waiting all the time to get our land guestion settled in Ottawa,
' and I don't want to be talking and talking this aver while thar mat-
ter is not zettled. )
Q. Well, you will have to keep oa waiting, and in the meantine we will
have to do our work. Now would you like to hava someone undar Mr.
Loring tc teach you how to cultivate your land, so that you cduld make
monay and live like white men?
A. You ask me guite a lot and give me guasstions all day when I was tel-
ling you bafore that we wvant to ggt our land back.
.- Mr. COMMISSIONER CARMICBAEL: We cannot settle that guestion.
e MR .  COMMISSIONER MACDOWALL:
Q. N@uld qu'Iike te have someone to teach you how to cultivate your land?
A. I don't want any man tc come here and teach me before I get fthe answer
qrout the petlitison.
[e] After you get zn answer to your petition wonld you Iike to have some-—
ope come then and teach you and show you how to cultivate your land?
A. After we gaet an answer about our land gquestion we will maﬁé yp our
minds what we are going to do about our cultivation. The other Govers-'
ment (Comnissicner) he was standing xigﬁththa:e yesterday, arnd he said
all our troubles is going to be settlied right in Ottawa. E
Q. He did not say that -~ he sald the land title question would be settled
in Ottawz: but the guestion of thase reserves will have to be seb-
tled right hers now?
a. Fe don't ask for any reservations at wll ~ we hoave done with re-
sexrves dlready.
C. Wkar is this piece of lard next to Lot 1455 on the Kitwangar rivezx.
Do you know this piece of land (indicating ¢he Iand on the blugprint)?
—_/ . :
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That is aur own land.

I that good land?

It is good land - that is the reason we are asking the Government for
it,

I= there much timber on it?

Not very much timber on it.

Do gyou know this other piece of land, half of Lot 1210, at the jupe-
tion of Mooa Creek and Kitwangar river?

Yes. Do you know the name of the man that ewns that I2nd?

MR. COMMTESYONER MACDOWALL:

A
a.

Qs

No - I am asking you?

There {s oo use in making questions, beczuse I know my land.

It is becalss you Xnow éverything that I am asking these guestions -
If I kpew everything there would b2 no need teo ask any questions, and
that is the reason why I am asking you. Now can you tell me whether
that is a good piaca of land?

Yes, it isx all good land all the way up to the lake and also on tha
west side of the lake. (Producing @ map of his ewn) all different
Ffamilies llve where these little red spots are, and that is the rea-
scn us gigned the petitian to get this land back for cur own pecple.
Who was it that made this map? '

4 man by the= name of Sam Dowes.

Was he a surveryor?

He 1s supposed to be a man that belongs te Kitwancool. Fe is an In=
dian and kpows all about the lend there.

Can we take this map to Victoria wikth us and return ¥ ¢ to you after
we get through with it? '

The reascn I am going to gqive it to yeu - I am a0t going to let any-
cne have this, but the reason I am going to give It to you is pecause
we signed the petition to ge this land back. I put my words before

gau Govermment people, and I dais “God was above us"“.

(EXHTBIT MAP HANDED IV WITR A LINE AROUND IT SHONING WHERE ADDITIONAL LAND

IS WANTED.)

MR. COMMISSIQNER HMACIOWALL: I am very glad you brought this map because

It Is going to help us a great deal.

Nt
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We want the whole councry within that black line.
Is this a good country for grazing cattlae?
Yes, it is pretty good farming land for cattla.

IBE CHATRMAN:

a.
a.

Any nmwuntains op 1t?
Yes, in some places there are mountains - Ope trail from the Indian

I
Y
o,
0
1}
1
J
1

[

village runs along the east side right ta *he Naa

2ll good grazing land.

MR, COMMISSIONER MACDOWALL:

QI

a.
Ov

A.

o

a.

Have your Band any cactle in &hig part of the country findicating op
map)?

We have a few at the Indian village.

You would like to have catile, would you not?

We would like to have the cattle right in this part of the country

‘after you people have settled this over.

Is this a gsod country for horses?

@oos

All around the porth side of the Lake right to the Naas river is good

for grazing and we keep it for graxing, and where the wax spots are
(on his map) wa have our cultivated land there.

Have yoy any horses running through this part of the country [indi-
catiﬁg on map) or do you keep them in the Ipdian village?

Yes, our hor5es run up and down over the whole country.,

Have you many Horses here?

Yes, they gqo wapdsring all around.

Have you many horses yourself?

I have only two horses.

Is there qood hay land where these places are mzrked (indicating on
map) ?

4ll those places that are marked its pretty goad for hay.

Are people livipg at all chesa placer whare they are marked wzth
rad was og your map?

Yez.

How many people live at the louest peint marked on the Waas River, on
this map, close to the boundary marked "A"?

There i& & big family lives there.

Do they belony o this Band?

Yes.

-. - e "+ -Page9 o_f39|RR-2018-8‘6931'1
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A. There is @ lot of people live there.

fr About how many live therer

&. The family of Chief Alexander lives there. ‘

Q. With regard to the placa marked "A" - how long have they been living
thezre?

A, No cne knows it, but since the world was made. _

Q. Are there &ny white pen living there or have any whike men inter-
fered with you at the pisce marked "a"7

A. The resson because we signed the petition 1s bacause it is gZabbed
already - the Govermment has sold it all - that is why we waht to
get it back zgain. '

[oR Fas any white man or whaite men taken up any land in village "a"?

Al Yes, white men are alvays trbing to grab ie. THe place e are naw
occupying is already surveyed.

Q. Now about the place marked “B" - has anyone shzveyed that?

A. Yoz, thar Is surveyed already.

Q. | Has =nyone gone to live thera?

A 4 have trapped up there and I have often seen white men there, hut
they have never interrf=red with us. :

GUS ST’ PIERRE IS SWORN TQ ACT AS INTERPRETFER.

WITNESS A, WfLLIAHS to COMMISSION: I want to Know why you ask me so many

gusstions individuaily when the land question covers the whole thing - If

it is in your power to grant the Titla T will explain éve:ything.

MR. COMMISSIONER MCKENNA:

@. You want all or nothing, 1s that what you mean? .

a. I am asking now for the houndaries.

TEE CHAIRMAN:

2. We want te know all about it before we can recommend it — TF you wili
give us some information then wa will be in a position to recommend
more land for you? ‘

&- My suspicion was this that yeU might recommend lietle reserves, and
I don'% want 1little reserves.

Q- We want this information. You have just stated that surveyars had
come in on your land and we want to find out whether thees snrveyers
had come in and turned the Indians out, and if we find that SULveyors

or anyone else has dnterfered with gou on your land we will have our

Page10 of 39 IRR-2018-8693
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surveyor make a copy of the map and find out who these pecple are:
therefore I am asking, or we are asking, these questions for the pro—
tection of yourself and your Band? .

From Kitwancool laks down to the Naas river is all syrveyed except the
very tops of ethe high hills, alsoc the laad lying along the Naas river
to Damasiadian lake.

MR. COMMSSIONER MACDOWALL:

Q.

..

A
.

When it has all besn su:veyéd in that way. it i= most Importans for

us ¥e know whether white people are living there now. We want to know
whether wihite people are mow living on the land £h2t is now pooupiad
by the Indians? ‘ ‘

The white men who have surveyed 1t they are net iiving there yet, busr

it is survayed and ir has been taken up.

Byt no one has interfered with you so far?

No. )
We will take this map down with us to Victoria, and wa will get

our survegor to take it over to the Land OFffice and see what the Govern—
ment has done with this land. Has Mr. Green, the suzrveyar, boer up
here? ’

rEs; about four years ago, but he did pot do any surveying.

Did he see any of the places where the wax marks are?

¥o, he only want as far as the willage. .

Did the Indiéns refuse ﬁa'shcw him theée places?

The Indians rerused to have it surveyed or reserved for them.

Very well then we will take this map down to Victeria wichk us and

we will return it to you after we have done with it. Now you say where
®ach and every one of these wax marks show you swezr that there ara
Indian families living at each one of these places?

Yes, I will take my oath to that. .

And they nave begn living there for Some time?

Yes. .

Fiy was it that the Indians would not show Mr. Green whers they were
living?

The only objact in sending Mr. Green back was because we did not want

the land reserved for us.
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[o How do you Indians make your living generally?

- Just trapping and [ishing.

D. Have-you any schocls?

A. No.’

[0 Hould you like to 'have a schoel?

A. Before, I cowld say that I would like to be enlightened on some points
- But'who will support the schocl? '

2. The Sominion Government will Ssupport the school.

A. 7 wen’t ask for a school just now — I am not in favour of having a
school just at che present time. That is & thing I have got to ask
the rest of my people about,

g. Do any of the children from your Hand go to school anywhere?

A, They attend schools when they are in a place where there is a school.

a. T suppase gou would like o have a schogl agter‘yau consult your
people, would you not?

No answer.

THE CHAIRMAN:

g.
a.
.
2.
.

ME.

Qd
A.

Do you raise vegetablies?

Yes.

What do you raise?

FPotatnes, |

Have you wame cultivation in all those_blaces that éra marked ih rad
wax? . | '

Those élaées-aza chiafly our hunting places, and what we have colti-
vated is chiefly around Kitwancool vill&ge_

COMMISSTONER MACDOWALL:

Do you thinx Kitwangar would be a good place for a school?

I could not talk upon the school gquestion just now,

What chureh do you belong tao?

The Church of England..

Have you a church op yaur reservé? ]

¥o - any time we go to church we sttend this church here af Kitwangar.
Dogs the Minister ever call around to see you?

Wa haven't seen a preacher up here for a Iong time, Mr. Price, who

used o be the Minister, used to come around to see us once in awhile,

—323=-
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( - Q. Have you a doctor? ' J
“\V; . . Ne. b
@. Would you like to have a doctor to attend to tha Indians when thay
are §ick? .
A. That is ancther tﬁing 1 canpnot say anything about. If any of us gat
sick we generally go to Dr. Wrench in Hazelton.
£. Has the hunting been good lately, or has the railway gaffaecred it in
qOy wayp? .
A. It has fallen off quite a bit since the white men came inte this
country.
g. Fow long is ii since It began té fall offz
4. I think we can notice it more within the last ten years.
Q. Hr, Tysomn, your Inspector, tells me that you poseibly don't want help
'mlﬁ'ﬁhe way of doctors, schools, arnd 2 farming inseructor because you
thlnk 1t might' affect the land guestion — Ia that correct’
A.__. ~ Yes, that is right,
4 o. Well nothing of that kind will affeet the land question kecause tho
Govarncruceneral of Canade has promised to take that matter before the
NS _ courts, so nothing of that kind will affect the casa.
WTTNESS Wﬁe:e does the Poninion Government get the nnneg to pay these
doctors and preachers who come amongst us?
MR . COMMISSIONER MACDOWELL:
A. From the white peqple a¢i over the country,
“wrmness: .
Q. I.s It pot the taxes thae they get from our lands that they have taken

L BT

from us?

MR, COMMISSTONER MACDOWALL:

A. No_— it is from tbe custom duties that they get from bringing thingz
T;%égéétﬁgg'o;ean. The Dbnun;on Cavarnment does thses things, and it
‘fag no land in this Province except what it buys. The Provincial
égzarnmant-administars the land, so the meney the Dominion Governmen:

spends on the Indians comes from the white men and rot fram tha land
at all.

At tiis point the meeting rclosed.

&
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Smouldering Embers: lhdian/Whiie
Conflicts in the Upper Skeena
Reglon, 1820-1927

Val. Z

« Gitxsan Library
Box 229
Hazelton, BC V0] 1Y0
250-842-6780
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In the pericd following the McKenna-McBride Hearings there vere

two pringipal centres of Indian protest activity: the Kitwvanhcool

L

valley and the Buikley valley; .In the former, there ﬁere 3

geries of 1incidents vhich involved attempts by the people of

{J

Kitwancool ta prevent & number of white settlers and officials
obtaining access to the Kitwancool valley. 1In the Rilkley valley

the situation was rather dJdifferent. The protests concerned a

Lo

number of Wet'suwet'en who persisted in ec¢cupying land vwhich had

been alienated by white settlers or speculators.

There 1s a brief report, dating from scme two years after the
event, of an incident in the Kitwancool valley in the summer of
1317. Little is known about this encounter save that a group of
white settlers were escorted through Kitwancoel village, “but as
soon as they discovered that the Police c¢ould not remain with
them, they were afraid to stay in the village" (Kelly Statement,

enc. in Coulter to 'E' Division, Nov. 9, 1919; RG10, Acc P.74¢-

"
Ty

5/59, Bex 1, File 1-3-1).

There was a similar occurrence the following summer, with the
excaption that the whites involved were fire-rangers and not
sertlers. More important, the hostility of the Ritwancool

Indians appeared to extend to the Provincial Police:

- 242
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"the two fire-rangers were turned back from the
‘Kitwancool village. These rangers came back to Kitwanga
and asked for Police assistance. The Provincial Police
vere sent down to accompany these rangers, but they were
told that if they tried to go farther there would be
trouble. These Police came hack and ever since the
Indians have had no respect for the Police" (Davies
Statement, enc, in Coulter to 'E' Division, Rov. 4, 1919;

Ibidg).

Corporal Coulter, of the RCMP detachment at Hazelton, challenged
part of this statement as he noted that the T"Provincial Police
took the rangers as far as they wished to go, and it was the
rangers who did not want to go any further inte the wvalley, thus

turning back." (Ibid).

In August and September of 1919 there was a replay of much the
same scenario. A report in the Interior News (Aug. 16, 1919) of
Smithers stated that in the period after the retreat of the fire-
rangers, "one or two settlers have +tried to make it stick up
there [in the Ritwancool valley}, but gave up vhen first a horse

and then & cow wvould mysteriously disappear." The same report

243
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claimed that

“the perpetual interference of the natives has.heen
tolerated long encugh, and has reached a point where the
public is justified in asking as to who is running the
country... Unlegs zome firm stand is taken ¥S break the
defiance of theae Indians, settlement must'be held up;

otherwise it will be a preluds to trouble® (IN, Aug. 16,
1919).

These remarks were made just after the first act in the conflict
of the summer of 191%. This followed from the work of E.P.
Burden, & provincial government surveyor, in the Ritwancool
valley. By the middle of August his actions had already brought
forth a protest from the Indians. This consisted of a "letter of
varning and also a copy of their protest to the Governor
[General] of Canada against white settlement" (Ibid). Burden was
also informed of the extent of the territory claimed by the
inhabitants of Kitwancool (*140). At some point the surveyors
“were ordered out by the Indians." This probably occurred
sometime around the end of August or the beginning of Septenber,
vhen Burden returned to the area aceonpanied by Duncan Munro of

the Land Settlement Board (*1¢l). The lstter, looking for

244
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suitable lands, had refused an Indian request for a meeting which
could have prompted the expulsion (J.G, Weod to Oliver, Dac. 1¢,

1919; GR 441, vol, 207, File 52).

The next phase of this ongoing conflict took place in September
vhen W.J. Kelly, a prospective settler, guided by E.L: Davies, a
white rancher at Kitwanga, set out on a trip "to locate" the
latter. On reaching Kitwancool they were met by "the whole

village and stopped.® Davies tried persuasion,

"hut they absclutely refused... Then some of them took
our horses by the head, and lead us back for about 200
yards and told us that if we tried to go further there
would be trouble. We told them that we would get the
Police, and they Just laughed at the idea of Police
helping any white man to go in and settle in the valley"
(E.L. Davies Statement, in Coulter to 'E' Division, Nov.

4, 1919; RC 10, Acc P. 74-5/59, Box 1, File 1-3-1).

Kelly did indeed make good on his promise to inform the Police.
The result was that a meeting was held at Kitwanga between the
Kitwancool Indians and Constables W.C. Little, of the B.C.

Police,.and J. Hevenor, of the RNWHME, Since Kelly had already

245
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left the area nothing was achieved at the meeting, gave that the
police were warned that there would be trouble "if they attempted
to take the white settlers beyond Kitwancool wvillage." At the
same time Loring, the Indian Agent; was approached to see if he
could do anything to help the situation. Loring's response was
that '"he could do nothing." (Constable Kelly staﬁement, in
Coulter to 'E' Division, Nav. 9, 1313; Ibid). In his own report
Loring managed to convey the impression that such incidents at

Kitwancool were both normal and insignificant (1).

Other white residents were less complacent. Rev. Ardagh, a
missionary at Kitwanga, noted that there was disaffection at that
village as well as Kitwancool (*142). After reviewing some of
the problems of the area and suggesting some solutions he

concluded by stating that,

“There 1is no doubt that the Indians in this whole
neighbourhoad are now so disleyal and so defiant of
authority that still further violation of law and even to
assault and murder would not surprise me" (Ardagh
Statement, in Coulter to 'E' Division, Nov. 4, 1919 RG

13, Acc P. 74-5/59, Box 1, File 1-3-1).

246

Page19 of 39 IRR-2018-86934



L4 L_1

{ &

.2

R

A

g}

L

i _b

}

R

08/206,02 10:39 T80l 8183375 G.H.C. & G.F.A.

(

..-..,“}.

By this stage, though, the events at Kitwanceol had already Degun
to attract a wider audience bath, in Ottawa and Victoria. Before
the middle of October Duncan Scott had written to Loring ra
repudiate his complacent Interpretation. Scott noted the
vconsiderable trouble” that the Indians of Kitwanceol had caused
"through their pretention to 2&n Qlleged title teo. the entire
valley based upon a Proclamation -of King George III of 1763.“
This was a “serious question®, Scott peinted out, which reguired
Loring's "most crareful attention." (Séott to Loring, Oct. 10

[?], 1819; RG 10, File 292,113).

Scott's view of the seriousness of matters was strengthened, no
doubt, by & letter from the Deputy Attorney General in the middle
of November. After a brief review of events in Kitwancool, i.M.
Johnson blamed the DIA for the situation and reguested scme
action. The grievance of the Kitwancool, Johnsen claimed, lay
with the BIA “bacause they have not been granted the reserves to
which they claim to be entitled" (Johnson to Scott, Nov. 14,
1919; RGlQ, Acc. P. 74-5/59, Box l, File 1-3-1). This was 3
Tesponse which betrayed a censiderable ignorance of both the

situation in Kitwancool and the previous actions of the

Government of British Columbia.
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In the middle of December pressure was put upen the provincial
government from a new direction. J.G. Wood, of Rattenbury Lands
Ltd, a company which owned sope 10,800 écres in the Kitwancool
valley, appr&ached.Premier Oliver about the si{tuation in the area
(*143). He noted that the Deputy Attorney-General had already
promised him “"police protection", which was very much-appreciated
but it meant “ousting the Indians, and therein... (he saw]
trouble.” (Woed to Oliver, Dec. 1§, 1513; GR 441, vol. 207, File
52). These «concerns were forvarded promptly to the DSGIA by
Oliver and, early in tha new yedar, he had a response from A.
Meighen, the Minister of the Interior. Meighen adviged the
Premier that W.E. Ditchburn, the Chief Inspector of Indian
Agencies for B.C., had been instructed to investigate on tha

spot.(*144)

Ditchburn's report on Xitwancool called for a8 further enguiry: a
tederal and a pravincial representative were to visit the arsa
and produce a joint report. The appointments, W,E. Collinson for
the DIA and Major Clarke for the province, were made early in May
and their report was completed by the end of the month (%145),
These official intiatives, however, did not ocecur in isolation;
they were accompanied by a2 series of developments in the Kitwanga

valley. .
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Early in 19220 Albeyt Williams, President of the XKitwancool Land
Commitree, and Premier Olivér had _ar exchange of letters. For
his part Williams put forward a statement of "what we want".
This included "control [of] our own land, inside of the Crown, no
matter what color our skins.® Oliver, in reply, noted that such
matters were a2 federal responsibility (*146). More significant
than these exchanges, at least in terms of prompting governmental
action, was the attempt of another settler, D.C, Hcﬁhiney, to

enter the Xitwvancool valley.

McWhiney and two companions left Kitwanga on April 13, 1920 and
headed nerth. After travelling about 1l miles a group of Indians
unsuccessfully attempted to prevent them from going any further,
A secondattempt, alsc unsuccessful, was made at the village of

Kitwancogl. Filnally, at Dousy,

"Rufus Good again ordered them to return and during the
conversation two Indians armed with rifles came out of a
ched near by when Rufus Good informed the party that
uriless they returned to Kitwangar and forthwith he would
get some Indians from Kitwancool and would get them

kbefore they had proceeded twenty miles” (D. McWhiney

243
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Complaint, in Minty to Relly, Apr. 21, 1320; RG1l0, Acc P,
74-5/53, Box 1, File 1-3-1),
This third encounter pProved too much; McWhiney ang party decided
to return to Kitwanga and Prince -Rupert. McWhiney's complaint,
entered at Prince Rupert, was later forwarded to Ditchburn by the

Deputy Attorney-General. In a covering letter Johnson stated;
"The situatrien ig simply this. If we attempt to police
this district and prevent open murder the Indians may
refrain from overt action ag long as the officers remain,
but the moment their backs are turned I have ne
hesitation in saying that these Indians will not stop

even at murder" (Johnson te Ditchburn, Apr. 28, 1920:
Ihid). '

Johnson alse indicated that he had no wish to repeat the "useless
eXpenditure® of pursuing Simon Gunanoot ang had written to the
DSGIA *"insisting that Seme  stand be taken by  the Indian

Department to put an end to the actions of these outlaw Indians®
(Ibid),

In these circumstances, Collison and Clarke arrived at Kitwvanga
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on May 2¢ for a meeting with the people of Kitwancool the
following day. Their instructions were to determine ‘“what lands
should be set aside as raserves for. these Indians." fThe poesition
of the Kiﬁwancool Indians with respect to settlers and aboriginal
title was outlined, but Collison and Clarke were warned to make
"no admissions or premises" with vespect to thet subject.
Instead, they were tao ryefer to the conditions of PBC 751.
Finally, they should not be daeterred by the Indians rejection of
reserves but determine, "their reasonable requirements in this
regard after going over the valley...® (Ditchburn to Collison,

May 7, 1320; 1big),

The meeting was held in the house of Albert Williams, President
of the Kitwancool Indian Rights Association, who was alge the
chief spokesman for tha tribe (*147). It was, "very formal and
arranged so as to impress wupon...[Collison ang Clarke] the
importance of the occasion.™ Albert Williams outlined the
pagition of the Kitwancool Indians: their «claim to the land
which they had "inherited from their forefathers" and fought for
"against hostile tribes from the north"; their willingness to
provide information; but their refusal to accept reserves "until
the land Questicn has been settled”. Collison and Clarke were

unable to convince the Kitwancaol representatives "regarding the
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futility of the present attitude® about the questicn of reserves
and Aboriginal Title. Hence, they conzgluded that, “the attitude
of these Indians is largely controlled by adverse outside

influence".

For their part the XKitwancool representatives were nat avare of
the purpose of the Collison-Clarke wvisit. When it became clear
that the objective was to "complete" the work of the McKenna-
McBride Royal Commission, by vigiting the Ritwancool valley and
selecting reserves, the attitude of the Indians changed. Albert
Williams, %at first tried to dissuade us from cur purpose", wrote
Collison and Clarke, "by suggesting that an exawination of the
Indian map of the Kitwancool valley would be sufficient, and save
us the journey; but this attitude vas dropped when our firm
attitude was disclosed”. Hence, the bulk of the report consisted
©f an account of various lots in the Kitwancocl valley and

récommendations as to which should be selected as Ieserves,
In  their concluding paragraph, however, Collison and Clarke
returned to more fundamental issues than the allocation of

reserves:

"Notwithstanding any action which may be  taken in

292
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consequence af the above report, we are convinced that
the question of Aboriginal Title of the Kitwancool Band
must ke giveﬂ.a conclusive. decision before éétisfactory
settlement can be effected, and we therefore wurge that
action be taken by the Dominion Government to secure the
ruling of this icsue and so put an end to tHe pernicious
influence of interested agitators and clear the way for a
true settlement of Indian affaires here, whick is s0 much

to be desired fo the principal parties concerned.”

Such comments, as their instructions indicared, were beyond
Collison and Clarke's mandate. The provincial and federal
governments were concerned only with the allocatian cof reserves
at Kitwancool and, on a broader =scale, the implementation of the
Royal Commission as a "final settlement." Within these
restricted parameters the work of Collison and Clarke appears to
hawve provided the basis feor action. A total of three
raservations were eventually established, including some “parcels
of land which had been purchased from the owners, by the
Provincial Government".(*148). This process became & reality in
the Kitwancool valley in 1927 with the appearance of provincial
SUrveyors to demarcate the reservations. It became the occasion

of a signficant conflict. Before turning to these events,
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however, it is necessary to record that there were at least tvo
other protests by the Kitwancool Indians in the period between

the visits of Collison and Clarke gnd the surveyors.

The first of these protests came in connection with the census
enureration of 1521. In the case of the Kitwancool -indians this
was a task which fell upon Edward Hyde, the new Indian Agent for
the Babine Agency. Hyde reached Kitwancool on Aug. 31 and his
report. on his wvisit eontained @ number of important points.
Although he was able to get, "the particulars necessary for the
census, from Sam Douse, a very dintelligent and loyal Indian," the
bulk of the population were antagonistic. Richard Douse, for
example, "refused to listen" +to Hyde's request for a friendly
talk and replied that the people of Kitwancool, "did not want any
Indian Agent or Government official to go through their willage",
There was even an attempt, Hyde claimed, to make him “turn back"

(*149).

The result of thls attempt, and Hyde's report of it, was the
arrival in Kitwancool of a second “official® party. This was on
Dec, 12, 1921 when the party consisted of Inspector Aecland, of
the RMP, Mr. A.B. Spain of the Criminal Investigation Bureau of

the RCMF and W.E. Collison as interpraeter. (*150) As in the case

254
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. of Collison's previous visit in 1320 a formal meeting was held
.] which was "so arranged as to give...[the visitors] the impression

of the tremendous impottance of the«meeting" (Colliscn Report, in

l

Collison to Ditchburn, Feb. 7, 1922; RG 10, Acc. b. 74~-5/59, Bax
1, File 1-3-1).
The Indian rtepresentatives, headed by Albert Williams, were under

the impression that their visitors had come to ‘'discuss their

i § 1 4 ¢ 4

land question and did not fail to openly express their annovyance

vhen they were informed of the real object of...[the] visit®

S |

(Ibid). Thus, much of the meeting was taken up by statements

about aboriginal title and the land question. With respect to

L d

the issue of the obstruction of Hyde and the census taking they
claimed that it was a mistake, that they did not realize that

Hyde was the Indian Agent. Collison, however, thought gtherwise.

w_J <« 1

From, '"conversation beﬁween the Indians", he had formed the
6pinion that, "the object of Mr. Hyde's wvisit was not unknown to
them, and that they had fully intended withholding all
information  from  him", Furthermore, the Indians  showed

a,"distinctly hostile feeling", towards Hyde, whom they thought

Y I I IR

responsible for the arrival of the ROMB. (Ibid). Inspector

Acland, on the other hand, accepted the Indian explanation of

P |

events at face value and simply issued a warning about futura

P
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behaviour. (Acland to Wroughton, Dec. 20, 1921; Ibid).

All in all the meeting in December 1921 was remarkably similar to
the meeting of May 1320 when Collison and Clarke were the
vigitors. This is reflected in conclusions reached by Inspectar

Acland: --

"I am convinced from the attitude and behaviour of the
Indians at this meeting, that it will be impossible for
settlers to succeed in this Valley, until the aboriginal
title 1is settled. I deo not think they will accept
Reserves in their presant frame of mind, and when [7] the
aboriginal title is settled, and the present plan of
Reserves are allotted to them, some small additional
plots further up the Valley will have to be included such
as fishing grounds and camping places, in order to avoid

iriction with the settlers..."(lhid}.

The next stage in the conflicts aver the Kitwancool valley was
reached in 1924 (*151). In August a vwhite couple, endeavouring
to take a, “holiday trip", wup the Kitwvanga valley to Portland
Canal, vere turnad back by the Kitwancool 1Indians. This action

vas described as, "amazing" by a Vancouver nevspaper, but far
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more startling events followed (%152). A.P. Horne, a fcrestry
engineer and his assistant, were engaged in a survey of timber
resources in the Kitwanga valley when, “they vere captured and

given trial by the natives".

On reaching the village of Kitwancool, Home's progress was halted
by a, “"powerful native, who was to all appearances a sentinel”. A
council of chiefs, "twelve old Indians, including one sgquaw", was
hostily assewmbled and Horne and his assistant were escorted teo
appear before them. The hearing opened with a prayer after which
"Chief Somlakzeltqu, a man of very formidahle appearance, rose
and nade an impassioned address, his eves flashing and his words
hot and angry flowing from his mouth in a torrent. He was
followed by another chief and then the interpreter requested the,
"names, ages, occupation, places of residence, nationality”, and

other similiar information of home and his assistant.

When thiz information had been collected, Horne was informed:

"We beg tc state that it was the wish of our ancestors,
as it is our wish, that all the preducts on that area
north of the nine mile past in this [Kitwanga] valley,

and for a distance in that direction of 115 miles by &0
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miles east and west, remain ours.

When we effect a settlement with the government we will
dispose of the said products on & royalty basis, but
until that time no white man shall enter there and you

are requested to return at once".

In response Horne stated that his intentions were peaceful and
that he would, "abide by the decision”, if they insisted. He
added that his map did not show an Indian reserve, hance he had
no means of knowing that he, "had been trespassing®. After a
consultation, the, "big chief", argese and reiterated the
decision: "God made land for everybody, Indians as well as white
man, and while we believe you are good white man, our decision is

final_." Thereupon Horne and his assistant returned down the

valley to Kitwvanga.

In his account of these events Horne noted that he was
"thoroughly convinced that... [the Kitwancool Indians] solemnly -
very solemnly -~ believe that they are protecting their rights",
He <c¢oncluded with a warning to the Federal and Provincial

governments:

Page31 of 39 IRR-2018-86934



oA

% tox e_& W (a3 L& (_a {

i -

I -V U - ST S

2 10:35 oe04 8483373 G.H.C. &

ar
e
S

o

( {

"I also believe that the government or governments are
flirting with trouble when they permit the fines of the
red man's discontent to smaulder from year to year. It
is in the interests of the country to have this matter
amicably settled,"
Instead of an amicable settlement the people ‘of Kitwancool
received only a wvieit from Edward Hyde. He brought official
notice of the establishment of reserves at Kitwanceel and a
formal warning from Commissoner Ditchburn ‘“that they must not
molest white people, nor prevent them entering by the ordinary

routes into the wvalley..." (VT, Sep. 17, 152&)

Ag the SJC returned 1its decision an the claims of the Allied
Tribes in 1927 the conditions for a final confrontation in the
Kitwancool +wvalley were set in motion. On May B Commissioner
Ditechburn, shortly after returning from Ottawa, met with Agent

Hyde in Prince Rupert. Part of Ditchburn's message was to inform

Hyde of the forthcoming visit of V.J. Schjelderup to Kitwancool

to survey the reserves. {Ditchbhurn to Hyde, June 30, 1927; RG 10,
Acc. P. 74-5/59, Box B, File 33/5/1).

The survey crew reached Kitwancaol towards the end of August only
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to have the Indians raid "the survey eguipment, destroying axes
and attempting to smash the instruments"™ (IN, Sep. 7, 1827). In
ali five Kitwanaool Indians were, arrested. Of these one was
given a suspended sentence and the others were given jalil terms

of varying lengths to be served in-Okalla prison (Ibid).
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of control over the land and resources persisted: less
certain was the best method of pursuing that ebjective. Thus
A.H. Gzreen, B.C.L.5., was greeted at Kitwanga in 1910 by

what he termed "passive obsttuction'.&3

Green's ?resence on the upper Skeena in 1910 was to
carry out survey work at Kitwancool and Andimaul. At both
locations he encountered ompositicn to his proposad
activities and threats should he proceed. Significantly, it
WaS Green!s‘opinion that all the tribes on the Skeena and
Nass had agreed not to accept reserves "until a decision has
been arrived at as to their claim to theiwhole country". To

this end a number of Tsimshian and Nishga chiefs had met

uh

Prime Minister Wilfred Laurier at Prince Rupert in August,

1910.70

~— The available documents do not indicatre that any
Gltksan representatives were present at this ﬁeeting.
Instead, g written address and petition, signed by chiefsf
from flve Gitksan vlllages; was forwarded - to Laurlerf?l Thls
document is an important statement of the drievances’ and -
claims of the Gltksun Chiefs:
The Humble Petition
and

. Address of Indians of the Upper Skeena
s to the Honcurable Sir Wilfred Laurier

Honocurable Sir,

s We rejoice that yvou have basn privileged +to
v151t this part of the Dominion.
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We are glad to welcome you as the chief minlster
of the Daminion House of Parliament, for as loyal
subjects of His Most Gracious Majesty King George v,
we zre ever ready to pay our respects to those who
may be glad to guide the affairs of the country.

Wwe do not feel ourselves worthy to speak in the
presence of one so high, dut belng conscious of the .-
Fatherhocd of God over all natives and pecple, and
as a pecple we are trying to obey His Divine
commandments, we feel that we can humbly approach
you with this written address and petition.

We, as representing the Indian people of the
SKEENA RIVER district, sent to you aboul two ¥years
age, respecting some referm in the Indian Act. We
find that Mr. Vowell and Mr. Stewart of the Indian
Department, Victoria had not received the petition
and could not grant us any reform.

The petition dealt with the question of the land’
of our fathers, which we feel has been taken away
from US by the whitee-mern, and it also requésted'that

" hunting rights and fisning rights might be more
extensively granted to us. Certain tracts of land
which while not being on a "reserve' have for

_ generations been used by our fathers as hunting
grounds, & for getting lumber, have now teen taken
away from us on the prectense that the tracts were
nct part of the reserve.

We humbly reguest that the taking away of such
land be stopped, and that the rights so long ago
erijoved by our fathers be granted to usz-

We also further humbly petiticn that the land of
onr fathers may return to u¥} and that mere rights
of liherty and freedom, be conceded to us. Also,
whereas, two of ocur people were brought before a
magistrate at Hazelton for cutting lumber, (not oR a
reserve), and whereas the decision of the magistrate
againgt our people was agreed to by the Indian
Agent, we humbly reguast that we may have the right
to cut lumber for our own use.

Wwe humbly trust that you will favourably consider
our requests.

We pray that your visit will bind our hearts more
Strongly to our Most Gracicus Sovereign Lord King
George V¥, and to the Parliament over which over
which you are the c¢hief minister.

Page35 of 39 IRR-2018-86934



4

08/20702 10:38 D664 8495375 G.H.C. & G.F.A.

/ %

We pray that the blessing of Almighty God may
rest upon yeou, and that you may be spared for many
years Lo serve your God, your sovereigm, and the
people of this great dominion. Assuring you of our
unfailing loyalty,

We remain

Your humbléusubjects

Edward Liginitha X his mark
Gitwangak

Shimadeeks . X his mark
Kitwancool. -

James Gordon X his mark
Kizegeucla

Edward Clark X his mark
Hazelton

Walter Kale X his mark
Kispiox

The visit of A.H. CGreen to the upper Skeena in 1910
overlapped with the presence of another DI2 representative:
Rev. Jochn McDougéll- McDougall's objective was te collect
information on Indian grievances and the general situation
in the area. He held a series of meetings with the Gitksan
and Wet'suwet'en and produced a brief written report and a
set of recommendations. The latter largely reflected his
assessment of the situation from the Indians' viewpoint. He
FFSEQJF@E Federal and,Provingial'gévernmgnts to sacure p@e

fextinguishment .of the Indiap title to the.lands in British,

{Columbia'l J12
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"In the fall of 1910 there were further reports of

Indians obstructing white settlers in the Kitwanga valley.

This resulted in the arrest of three Kitwancool Indians.
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Shortly thereafter "notices” from the chiefs of Kitwanga and
Kitwancocl began to appear, pinned to trees along trails in
the Hazelton district. The notices laid claim to aboriginal

title and invoked the Royal Proclamation:

"We the chiefs of Kitwinkoll and Kitwangak have I
(cne] thing to say, We do not wish any whiteman to
take our land away.

This land belongs to our forefathers and XKing George
3 tell this larnd belong to Indian.

We never fight for this land. No pay us any money.
We don't want governmment at Victoria te stezl this
land from us.

We go to this land for berries and hunt wild
animals.

Take away land and we got no place to live on."’3

-

The report of these 'notices" came shortly after a
meeting in Victoria between Premier McBride and ninety-six
Indian chiefs and delegates from tribes throughout the
Province. From the Indian perspective this meeting proved to
be unsatisfactory. Their memorial of claims was turned dewn
"eurtly and pefemptorily", leaving a "bitter feeling". The
Gitksan took part in one of the respanses to this rejection.
Charles Martin, of Gitanmax, was selected as "the man ... to
speak for the Skeena River Indians" on a projecéed trip to

England about "the land”. Owing to the corconation of George

V, Martin proceeded no further than Prince Rupert. /4

The summer of 1911 saw a return visit to the upper
Skeena by surveyor A.H. Greemn. On this cccasion his
attention was directed towards the fisheries ard_hunting
stations of the Kispiax Indians. Green examined individual

sites and had two meetings with representatives of the
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villags. At both meetings, in addition to some specific
complaints, he received demands that would "virtually give
them the whole country".75 Wnen bhack in Victeria, Green
filed a request that the individual fishing sites, which he
had mapped, be prazectéé f£o£¢f;£ther encroachment. By this
stage, however, an impasse had been reached between the
Federal and Provincial govermments, with the latter refusing

to agree to the establishment of any further Indian

ragerves. 76

This particular impasse was removed by the McKenna-
McBride Agreement signed in éeptember, 1912: it provided for
the establishment of a jeoint Royzl Commission on Indian
Affairs in British Columbia to resolve all outstanding
issues. At the insistepce cf Premier Mchide, howevar, it-
contained no reference to the guestion of aboriginal ticle.]
The Indians were not parties to this agreement.77 By
coincidence, on the very day that the agreement wWas signed.
representatives from eight Gitksan villages were in Prince
Rupert t¢ meet the Gavernor-General., It was laréely i
ceremonial occasion but, for some of the Gitksan, it was
viewed as a part of their an-going efforts to obtain

Justice.’8

In the period between the McKenna-MeBride Agresment of
1912 and the arrival of the Commissicners on the upper
Skeena in 1915 local issues continued to cause discontent.

Complaints were lodged against the Indian Agent, indicating
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the continuing animesity of at least & portion of the Indian
population. The Wet'suwet'en, too, continued to complain., In
their case the problem remzined the disposition of land im
the Bulkley valley.’? Kitwancool, however, wWas the site of

the most forceful protests of this period.

In 1913 a survey crew was halted in its work, relieved
of their instruﬁentS; and ordered to leave the Kitwanga
valley: these actions were accomppanied by ;-display‘of five-
arms. Although the survey instrumants were returned the next
day, the police had been summoned and, in due course, three
of the ringleaders were arrested. They were charged.under

the Officizl Survey Act and given suspended sentences,80

The establishment cf the McKenna-McBride Royal
‘Commission brought forth some prompt and co-ordinated
responses from the Indian peoples of British Columbia. The
principal vehicle for sﬁch action was the Indian Rights
Association (IRA), which entered 2 vigorous'objéction to the
restricted texms of reference of the Royal CommigsioH; Thelir
fears proved well-grounded. Under Indian questioning the
Commissioners stated that they had no guthdrity'to deal with?
the.qugstidn of Indian title.8l ror their part, the IRA
recommended a farmat fox Tndian appearances before the
Ccommissioners. Each tribe, it was resolved, should select
two or three spokespersons whose duty it wonld he 'fn walt
upen said Commission, when it visits their particular

locality, and reguest that the fundamental question of title
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